
Town Hall, Bourne Avenue, Bournemouth BH2 6DY 

 

 
 

 

Notice of The Charter Trustees for Bournemouth 
 

Date: Monday, 25 October 2021 at 6.00 pm 

Venue: Council Chamber, Town Hall, Bournemouth BH2 6DY 

 

Membership: 

Mayor: 

Cllr D Kelsey 

Deputy Mayor: 
Cllr S Phillips 

Cllr H Allen 
Cllr L Allison 
Cllr M Anderson 
Cllr S C Anderson 
Cllr M Andrews 
Cllr S Bartlett 
Cllr J Beesley 
Cllr D Borthwick 
Cllr P Broadhead 
Cllr D Brown 
Cllr S Bull 
Cllr R Burton 
Cllr E Coope 
Cllr M Davies 
 

Cllr N Decent 
Cllr B Dove 
Cllr B Dunlop 
Cllr J Edwards 
Cllr G Farquhar 
Cllr D Farr 
Cllr L Fear 
Cllr A Filer 
Cllr M Greene 
Cllr N Greene 
Cllr M Haines 
Cllr N Hedges 
Cllr M Iyengar 
Cllr C Johnson 
 

Cllr T Johnson 
Cllr A Jones 
Cllr J Kelly 
Cllr R Lawton 
Cllr L Lewis 
Cllr R Maidment 
Cllr D Mellor 
Cllr L Northover 
Cllr K Rampton 
Cllr C Rigby 
Cllr R Rocca 
Cllr T Trent 
Cllr L Williams 
Cllr K Wilson 
 

 

All Members of The Charter Trustees for Bournemouth are summoned to attend this 

meeting to consider the items of business set out on the agenda below. 

The press and public are welcome to view the live stream of this meeting at the following 
link: 

https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5141 

If you would like any further information on the items to be considered at the meeting please 

contact: Democratic Services by email at democratic.services@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

Press enquiries should be directed to the Press Office: by email at 
press.office@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

This notice and all the papers mentioned within it are available at democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

 

A
v
a
ila

b
le

 o
n
lin

e
 a

n
d
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 M

o
d
.g

o
v
 a

p
p
 

 

 

 

 

 

GRAHAM FARRANT 

 

HONORARY CLERK TO THE CHARTER TRUSTEES 

 

 

15 October 2021 
 



 

 susan.zeiss@bcpcouncil.gov.uk  

 

mailto:anne.brown@bcpcouncil.gov.uk


 

 

AGENDA 
Items to be considered while the meeting is open to the public 

1.   Apologies  

 To receive any apologies for absence from Charter Trustees. 

 

 

2.   Declarations of Interests  

 Charter Trustees are requested to declare any interests on items included 
in this agenda. Please refer to the workflow on the preceding page for 

guidance. 

Declarations received will be reported at the meeting. 
 

 

3.   Confirmation of Minutes and Matters arising 5 - 8 

 To receive the minutes of the meeting held on 24 June 2021 and to 
consider any matters arising. 
 

 

4.   Charter Mayor's Report  

 The Charter Mayor will report on his recent activities and any associated 

issues. 
 

 

5.   Responsible Financial Officer  

 The Charter Trustees are advised that Matthew Filmer, Acting Assistant 

Chief Financial Officer will undertake the role of Responsible Financial 
Officer replacing Nicola Webb. This change took effect from 1 July 2021. 

 

 

6.   Budget Monitoring Update Report 9 - 12 

 The forecast for the 2021/22 financial year is that the Charter Trustees of 
Bournemouth will underspend against the budget set. This is due to 

reduced activity caused by Covid-19 restrictions and ongoing caution as 
restrictions are lifted. The forecast surplus for the year is £13,325. 
 

 

7.   Appointment of Charter Trustee for Bank Statement Verification  

 The Charter Trustees are advised that the Financial Regulations state: 

 
2.2 On a regular basis, at least once in each quarter, and at each financial 

year end, a member other than the Mayor shall be appointed to verify bank 
reconciliations (for all 6 accounts) produced by the RFO. The member shall 
sign the reconciliations and the original bank statements (or similar 

document) as evidence of verification. This activity shall on conclusion be 
reported, including any exceptions, to and noted by the Charter Trustees at 

the next appropriate meeting. 
 
The Charter Trustees are asked to confirm an appointment.    

 
 

 

 



 
 

 

8.   Outcome of External Audit for 2020/21  

 At the meeting of the 24 June the Charter Trustees approved the Annual 
Governance Statement and Accountability Return which includes the 
statement of accounts 2020/21. Following an external audit by PKF 

Littlejohn LLP the accounts were certified on 28 September 2021 and both 
the final submission and audit certificate can be found on the Charter 

Trustees website.  
 

 

9.   Future Banking Arrangements  

 In accordance with the Charter Trustees Financial Regulations which state: 
 

“The Charter Trustees’ banking arrangements, including the bank mandate, 
shall be made by the RFO and approved by the Charter Trustees. They 

shall be regularly reviewed for control and efficiency.” 
 
Charter Trustees are advised of the future banking arrangements whereby 

from 1 April 2022 all 3 current suppliers to BCP have been combined into 
one and in accordance with the Financial Regulations are asked to approve 

these arrangements.   

 

 

10.   Feedback from Civic Working Group  

 The Charter Trustees will be updated on any feedback from the Civic 

Working Group held on 24 September 2021. 
 

 

11.   Proposed Rifles Freedom Parades 2022  

 The Charter Trustees will be updated on proposed arrangements for the 

above.  
 

 

12.   Her Majesty's Platinum Jubilee Celebrations - City Status Bid  

 The Charter Trustees will be updated on the above. 
 

 



 – 1 – 
 

THE CHARTER TRUSTEES FOR BOURNEMOUTH 

 

Minutes of the Meeting held on 24 June 2021 at 6.00 pm 
 

Present:- 

Cllr D Kelsey – Mayor 

Cllr S Phillips – Deputy Mayor 

 
Present: Cllr M Anderson, Cllr S C Anderson, Cllr S Bartlett, Cllr J Beesley, 

Cllr D Borthwick, Cllr D Brown, Cllr S Bull, Cllr R Burton, 

Cllr E Coope, Cllr M Davies, Cllr B Dove, Cllr B Dunlop, 
Cllr J Edwards, Cllr L Fear, Cllr A Filer, Cllr N Hedges, 

Cllr C Johnson, Cllr J Kelly, Cllr R Lawton, Cllr L Northover and 
Cllr L Williams 

 

9. Apologies  
 

Apologies were received from Councillors M Andrews, P Broadhead, G 
Farquhar, D Farr, M Haines, M Iyengar, A Jones, L Lewis, K Rampton, C 
Rigby, R Rocca and T Trent. 

 
10. Declarations of Interests  

 

The Honorary Clerk reported that no declarations of interest had been 
received for this meeting.  

 
11. Confirmation of minutes and matters arising  

 

The minutes of the meetings held on 25 January 2021 and 28 May 2021 
were confirmed as a correct record subject to Cllr B Dove being included as 

in attendance at the meeting on 25 January 2021.  

There were no matters arising. 

 
12. Charter Mayor's Report  

 

The Mayor reported on his activities since being elected on 28 May 2021 
and attendance at the following events:  

 the funeral of an ex Mayoress who had recently passed away which 
was Jim Courtney’s wife.  He reported that it was a sad occasion but 
well attended. 

 Soroptimists meeting – he confirmed that Soroptimists were a group 
of feminists who help empower women throughout the world.  He 

reported that he really enjoyed the engagement and found it very 
interesting. 

 Opening of the Library at Hill View School - he highlighted the 

excellent work that all the children had done in redesigning their 
library and had thoroughly enjoyed the event. 

 Flag raising ceremony for Armed Forces Day attended by the 
Chairman of BCP Council and the Mayors of Bournemouth, 

Christchurch and Poole. 
 

5

Agenda Item 3



– 2 – 

THE CHARTER TRUSTEES FOR BOURNEMOUTH 
24 June 2021 

 
The Mayor asked the Charter Trustees if they had events that they would 

like him to attend to let him know and if he was free, he would be happy to 
attend.  In particular he highlighted the need to support businesses 
following the impact of Covid. 

 
13. Charter Trustees 2020-21 Internal Audit Report  

 

The Responsible Financial Officer - RFO, Dan Povey presented the Internal 
Audit Report, a copy of which had been circulated to each Trustee and a 

copy which appears as Appendix ‘A’ to these minutes in the Minute Book. 

The RFO explained that the report was a summary of the review 

undertaken by internal audit on the internal controls and governance of the 
Charter Trustees. He explained that the report would aid the Charter 
Trustees when considering agenda item 7 which sought approval of the 

Accountability and Governance Return which included the Annual 
Governance Statement which was an assessment built on the internal 

audit’s review of the governance arrangements of the Charter Trustees. 

The RFO reported that the list of applicable controls that audit were asked 
to assess had resulted in either a substantial or reasonable audit assurance 

which means that in the main the Charter Trustees was operating well.  He 
explained that the only control that provided a partial assurance was risk 
management.  The Charter Trustees were reminded that the risk register 

was approved at the January meeting and the reason it was a partial 
assurance was because it was not in place for the entire 2020/21 financial 

year.  

RESOLVED – that the 2020-21 Internal Audit Report be received and 
adopted. 

Voting - Agreed 
 

14. Budget Outturn Report 2020/21  
 

The Responsible Financial Officer presented a report on the budget outturn 

for 2020/21, a copy of which had been circulated to each Trustee and a 
copy of which appears as Appendix 'B' to these Minutes in the Minute Book. 

The RFO explained that this report provided the detail of the budget prior to 
the Charter Trustees being asked to approve the Statement of Accounts in 
the Governance Return.  

He reported that throughout the year there was a significant underspend 
forecast due to the pandemic with the activities of the Charter Trustees 

seriously curtailed.  The Charter Trustees were informed that the year-end 
outturn position was an underspend of £27,671.  Appendix A to the report 
set out the detailed spend against each of the budget headings with a total 

spend of £105,179.00 which agreed with the statement of accounts at 
agenda item 8.  The RFO explained that expenditure had mainly been 

incurred on premises, staff support and recharges from BCP Council with 
the civic budgets underspent. The Charter Trustees were advised of the 
reserves position with just over £40,000 total reserves carried forward as at 

31 March 2021.  The RFO reported that a prudent level of reserves was 
20% of the precept.   

6



– 3 – 

THE CHARTER TRUSTEES FOR BOURNEMOUTH 
24 June 2021 

 
 
RESOLVED that the Charter Trustees note the budget outturn position 
for 2020/21. 

Voting: Agreed 

 
15. Annual Governance Statement 2020/21  

 

The Charter Trustees considered the Annual Governance Statement and 
Accountability Return, which had been circulated to each Trustee and a 

copy of which appears as Appendix ‘C’ to these Minutes in the Minute Book 
which included the Annual Governance Statement for 2020/21. 

The Charter Trustees were asked to approve the submission as set out on 
page 31 of the agenda pack which included the internal audit report which 
was signed off by the internal auditor and fed into the formal Annual 

Governance Statement which confirmed to the external auditors that the 
internal auditors view was that controls were operating.  

RESOLVED that the Charter Trustees approve the Annual Governance 
Statement for 2020/21. 

Voting: Agreed  

 
16. Statement of Accounts for 2020/21  

 

The RFO presented the Statement of Accounts for 2021/22 as set out in the 
Annual Governance and Accountability Return which showed expenditure 

and reserves for 2020/21 with comparatives from the previous year.  

RESOLVED that the Statement of Accounts for 2020/21 be approved. 

Voting: Agreed  

 
17. Responsible Financial Officer  

 

The Charter Trustees were advised that in accordance with the Standing 
Orders the Responsible Financial Officer from 1 July 2021 following the 

resignation of Daniel Povey, would be Nicola Webb in a temporary 
capacity. 

The Mayor took the opportunity to thank Mr Povey for his support to the 
Charter Trustees and wished him well in the future. In particular he thanked 
him for his advice and guidance in supporting the Charter Trustees. 

 
18. Flag Flying Arrangements for the Charter Trustees for Bournemouth  

 

The Deputy Head of Democratic Services reported on the opportunity for 
the Charter Trustees to consider the adoption of its own flag.  She 

highlighted that the former Borough of Bournemouth Coat of Arms was in 
the ownership of the Charter Trustees and could be an option.  The Charter 

Trustees were also asked to consider its own flag flying arrangements as a 
separate organisation which could include identifying specific events when 
a flag would be raised together with the provision of a flagpole for use by 

the Charter Trustees.  

7



– 4 – 

THE CHARTER TRUSTEES FOR BOURNEMOUTH 
24 June 2021 

 
 

Councillor Borthwick felt that it was a great opportunity to investigate this 
and put in place arrangements this year and he was happy to propose that 
approach.  Councillor Coope suggested that the adopted flag should be 

used for special occasions such as the Queen’s Birthday and the Platinum 
Jubilee next year and seconded Council Borthwick’s proposal.  Councillor 

Mark Anderson asked about the cost of the provision of a flagpole for the 
Charter Trustees.  The Mayor whilst welcoming the points that had been 
made suggested that a small working group be set up to consider this issue 

and report back to the Charter Trustees.  Councillor Williams volunteered to 
sit on the Working Group.  Councillor Filer referred to the coat of arms and 

indicated that she would welcome it being adopted as the Charter Trustees 
flag. Councillor Dunlop referred to the BCP Flag Flying Protocol and the 
potential for a Charter Trustees adopted flag and felt that there were too 

many flags and suggested that there should be a modern approach to this 
issue.  Councillor Dunlop highlighted that the coat of arms was meaningful 

to older generations whose history was in the Town, but she wondered if it 
meant anything to most of Bournemouth’s modern residents.  Councillor 
Hedges sought clarity on whether the coat of arms was being changed in 

anyway.  The Mayor reported that no such recommendations had been 
submitted.  Councillor Bartlett reported that through the LGR process it had 
been acknowledged that each town would retain its identity and heritage 

and part of that was to recognise that the mayoralties had to be retained.  
He felt that the civic history was important to people in the town.  Councillor 

Dove confirmed that at no point did she understand Councillor Dunlop’s 
comments to mean the destruction of the heritage or moving away from the 
pride of the town.  She suggested that it would be prudent for the working 

party to consider whether or not the Charter Trustees move away from a 
flag and consider how to appeal to a younger cohort and offer a more 

inclusive approach. 

Councillor Borthwick and Coope withdrew their move. 

RESOLVED that a working group be established to consider the flag 

flying arrangements for the Charter Trustees for Bournemouth and the 
adoption of a flag. 

Voting: Agreed   
 
 

 
 

 
The meeting ended at 6.32 pm  

 MAYOR 

8



THE CHARTER TRUSTEES FOR 
BOURNEMOUTH 

 

Report subject  Budget Monitoring Update Report 

Meeting date  25 October 2021 

Status  Public Report   

Executive summary  The forecast for the 2021/22 financial year is that the Charter 
Trustees of Bournemouth will underspend against the budget set. 
This is due to reduced activity caused by Covid-19 restrictions and 
ongoing caution as restrictions are lifted. The forecast surplus for 
the year is £13,325.  

Recommendations It is RECOMMENDED that:  

 (a) The Charter Trustees note the in-year budget position 
for 2021/22 

Reason for 
recommendations 

To inform the Charter Trustees of the budget position for the 
current financial year 

Report Authors Matthew Filmer, Acting Assistant Chief Financial Officer BCP 
Council 

Classification  For Information  
Ti t l e:   

Budget forecast position 2021/22 

1. The Charter Trustees of Bournemouth approved the 2021/22 budget at their 
meeting of 25 January 2021. Agreed total expenditure was £156,050 which will 
be funded from the council tax precept of £147,956 and a contribution from 
reserves of £7,994.  

2. Appendix A of this report provides a detailed breakdown of the agreed budgets 
and the latest financial forecast for 2021/22 against budget headings. The current 
forecast is that budgets will be underspent at the year-end because of reduced 
activity due to Covid-19 restrictions and ongoing caution as restrictions are lifted. 
This will create a net surplus of £13,325 which will be contributed to reserves at 
year end.  

3. The reserves of the Charter Trustee of Bournemouth are forecasted to increase 
to a closing position of £53,390.  

Budget workshop 

4. In January 2022 the Charter Trustees will meet to set the 2022/23 budget and agree 
the council tax precept to fund it.  

9

Agenda Item 6



5. To facilitate the budget setting process for next year it is recommended that, like last 
year, a budget workshop is held in November 2021. The workshop will look to 
provide clarity and direction for the following budget areas: 

a) Update on the in-year budget position to inform the levels of budget required 
for 2022/23; 

b) The Charter Trustee’s ambitions with regards to precept levels and therefore 
implications for council tax; 

c) Review of the tax base for the Charter Trustees of Bournemouth 

d) Review of recharges made to the Charter Trustees. This would include 
agreeing a charge for the use of the vehicles from BCP Council.  

e) An appropriate level of reserves for the Charter Trustees to maintain. 

Summary of financial implications 

6. As detailed in the report 

Summary of legal implications 

7. None 

Summary of human resources implications 

8. None  

Summary of sustainability impact 

9. None 

Summary of public health implications 

10. None 

Summary of equality implications 

11. None 

Summary of risk assessment 

12. The monitoring of the in-year budget position and early engagement on the 
2021/22 budget setting process minimise the risks that budgets are insufficient to 
meet expenditure, or that in-year overspends occur.  

Background papers 

Budget and Precept 2021/22 – Published Works, Charter Trustees of Bournemouth 
meeting 25 January 2021 

Budget Outturn Report 2020/21 – Published works, Charter Trustees of Bournemouth 

meeting 24 June 2021  

Appendices   

Appendix A - The Charter Trustees of Bournemouth - September 2021 Monitoring 

10



APPENDIX A

2020/21 2021/22 2021/22

Outturn Budget Forecast

Expenditure

Civic Budget

156 Hospitality   12,000 4,000

3,714 Civic Regalia 4,500 4,500

0 Travel and Subsistence 100 0

0 Training & Conferences 200 0

496 Out of Pocket Expenses 2,000 1,000

0 Photography 500 0

0 Flowers 300 300

Civic Events

0 Mayor-Making 3,500 1,000

0 Remembrance Sunday Parade & Service 10,000 10,000

0 Civic Service 2,000 0

0 Civic Awards 200 200

0 War Commemorations 1,500 100

0 Special Anniverserial Events 500 500

0 Other Events - Contingency 500 0

Premises

23,220 Room & Premises rental 17,350 15,350

Staffing Recharges

72,050 Salaries, LGPS Pensions & National Insurance 89,200 89,200

Administration and Running Costs

43 Postage 200 100

507 Printing & Photocopying 50 50

0 Stationery 300 150

300 Subscriptions - Organisations 250 150

Supplies and Services

0 Uniform and Clothing 500 250

600 Insurance 600 600

400 External Auditors 400 400

1,250 Internal audit 1,250 1,250

600 Accountancy 3,450 3,450

1,834 IT Provision 1,500 1,500

0 Telephone 500 0

0 Laundry (dry-cleaning of Parlour laundry, uniforms, robes) 200 100

Transport

0 Fuel 2,000 500

0 Vehicle  Hire 250 500

8 Vehicle Maintenance & Repairs 250 0

105,179 Total Expenditure 156,050 135,150

Income & Reserves

(137,250) Council Tax Precept (147,956) (147,956)

0 Investment Income (100) (86)

32,071 Contribution to / (from) Reserves (7,994) 13,325

VAT reimbursement 0 (433)

(105,179) Total Income & Reserves (156,050) (135,150)

0 Net Position 0 0

(7,994) Opening Balance (40,065) (40,065)

(32,071) In year movement 7,994 (13,325)

(40,065) Closing Balance (32,071) (53,390)

The Charter Trustees of Bournemouth - September 2021 Monitoring

Description of expenditure and income

The Charter Trustee of Bournemouth Reserves

11



This page is intentionally left blank

12


	Agenda
	3 Confirmation of Minutes and Matters arising
	6 Budget Monitoring Update Report
	Appendix A - CTB September 2021 Monitoring


